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INTRODUCTION 
 
 Last summer, here on the Vineyard, my neighbor and friend, Mike Cooper, a 
distinguished New York City attorney, and I, a Washington, D.C. lawyer, began an online 
petition proposing that both the House and Senate each censure President Trump for a series 
of misdeeds he had already committed. Our petition was styled “A Petition for the Redress of 
Grievances,” which is provided for as a remedy for every citizen under the Constitution’s First 
Amendment. Censure by either house is a long-utilized remedy for presidential and 
congressional misconduct. For, example, President Andrew Jackson and Senator Joseph 
McCarthy both were censured (or admonished) by the Senate.  It was our view that while 
some of President Trump’s misdeeds might warrant impeachment, at a minimum they called 
for his censure. 
 
 In the year that ensued, the misconduct of President Trump has continued but Congress 
has been disinclined to call him to account. At the present moment we have accumulated a list 
of 50 substantial grounds for his censure, up to and including his recent groveling before 
Russian President Putin in Helsinki, Finland. With little effort, we have achieved over 60,000 
signatures to our petition. Our 50 grounds for censure appear at pages 2-12, hereafter. They 
also will be found at censuredonaldtrump.com. 
 
 We urge you to sign on, and pass it on to your contacts. This petition also serves as a 
reminder of the many instances of outrageous conduct that have been engaged in by Trump. If 
there is a tendency to focus solely upon his most recent violations of law, the rule of law and 
his unethical and unseemly behavior, we believe our list serves to keep the public, and the 
press, focused on the totality of his misbehavior during his present incumbency, so that it is 
not forgotten because of the passage of time and his latest outrage. 
 
 One final point. From the time we began this project, we claimed that some of Trump’s 
behavior, while not criminal in nature, would qualify as a basis for impeachment. Recently, in 
Alan Dershowitz’s new book, entitled, The Case Against the Impeachment of Trump, he 
argues that to be impeached, a president must commit a crime. On this point, which is the 
major premise of his book, I believe him to be mistaken, and numerous authorities agree. One 
of those is President Trump’s current Supreme Court nominee, Judge Brett Kavanaugh, who 
in a 2009 law review article, declared that there was always a way to remove a “bad-behaving 
or law-breaking President...If the President does something dastardly,1  the impeachment 
process is available.” (Emphasis and footnote added.) 
 
 I have attached at pages 13-22 an article I wrote entitled, Deconstructing Dershowitz, 
which takes issue with Professor Dershowitz on this and other matters. 

                                                           
1  According to Merriam-Webster, “a cowardly failure to stand up for principle.” 

http://censuredonaldtrump.com/
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PETITION TO THE CONGRESS OF THE UNITED STATES FOR THE 
REDRESS OF GRIEVANCES UNDER THE FIRST AMENDMENT 
REQUESTING THAT PRESIDENT TRUMP BE CENSURED 
 
The undersigned, exercising their inalienable right, deriving from the Magna 
Carta and enshrined in the First Amendment to the United States 
Constitution, “to petition the Government for a redress of grievances,” do 
hereby request of each member of the United States Senate and House of 
Representatives that the Senate and House, separately or jointly, adopt a 
resolution censuring President Donald J. Trump for the misconduct 
described below. 

The undersigned have concluded, after due deliberation, that President 
Donald J. Trump, from the day he took office on January 20, 2017 as the 
forty-fifth President, to the present, has betrayed his obligations to “preserve, 
protect and defend the Constitution” and to "take care that the laws be 
faithfully executed" by engaging in the following unlawful conduct, and 
conduct that contravenes, betrays, disparages and denigrates the values 
enshrined in the Constitution, and demeans the office of President. Far from 
embracing our constitutional rights and obligations, President Trump has 
demonstrated that he lacks allegiance to, respect for, or even knowledge of, 
those rights and obligations. 

1. President Trump acted improperly by 
(i) firing Director James Comey of the FBI for refusing to terminate the FBI’s 
investigation into charges that the Russian Government had sought to 
influence the outcome of the November 2016 presidential election, and then 
offering contradictory explanations of the reasons for that firing, one or more 
of which explanations must have been false. 
(ii) interfering in the FBI’s investigation of Michael Flynn, who had been 
National Security Advisor until his recent firing by the President, by asking 
FBI Director Comey to terminate that investigation. 
(iii) disclosing highly classified intelligence information to Russian Foreign 
Minister, Sergei Lavrov, and the Russian Ambassador to the United States, 
Sergei. Kislyak, in a private meeting in the Oval Office on May 10, 2017. 
(iv) abusing the powers of his office and the integrity and independence of 
the Justice Department by admonishing Attorney General Sessions for 
having recused himself from involvement in the investigation of 
Russian interference in the 2016 presidential election. 
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2. President Trump has disgraced his office by repeatedly making false 
statements publicly in violation of 18 U.S.C. 1001 which provides, in relevant 
part, that "...whoever, in any matter within the jurisdiction of the executive, 
legislative or judicial branch of the Government of the United States, 
knowingly and willfully...makes any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent 
statement or representation...shall be fined,...imprisoned not more 
than 5 years...or both. 
(i) President Trump asserted on March 4, 2017 that his predecessor, then 
President Barack Obama, had tapped his phone at Trump Tower in New 
York City. Neither President Trump nor anyone else has offered any 
evidence to support this claim, which must, therefore, be concluded to have 
been false. 

3. President Trump has ownership, leasehold, licensing or other interests in 
numerous hotels in Washington, D.C., elsewhere in the United States and 
abroad in which individuals holding office in foreign governments have 
stayed and/or enjoyed meals and entertainment, and has thereby violated 
Article 1, Section 10 (the “Emoluments Clause”) of the United States 
Constitution. Further, President Trump continues to hold and benefit from his 
many assets, both foreign and domestic, receiving profits and benefits, such 
as trademarks, from foreign powers, which constitute wrongfully received 
emoluments. By engaging in those violations, President Trump has also 
violated his oath of office to “preserve, protect and defend the Constitution of 
the United States.” 

4. President Trump has disparaged, demeaned and ridiculed women, 
including statements referring to the lack of intelligence and the physical 
appearance of a television commentator. Such conduct betrays our Nation’s 
values and undermines the hard-fought equality of women in our Nation. 

5. By announcing on May 31, 2017 that the United States is withdrawing 
from the Paris Climate Accords signed by 195 nations, President Trump has 
acted recklessly, without justification and contrary to the wishes of the great 
majority of the American people, and has thereby jeopardized the residents 
of our country and their descendants. 

6. President Trump has refused, and made clear that he will continue to 
refuse, to disclose his previously filed or future federal income tax returns in 
violation of a long-standing tradition of disclosure honored by former 
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Presidents. That refusal has deprived and will deprive Congress and the 
American people of information necessary to determine 
(i) whether, and if so, the extent to which, President Trump violated the 
Emoluments Clause of the United States Constitution; 
(ii) the President’s past, continuing and future relations with foreign 
individuals and entities; and 
(iii) the personal impact on President Trump of any proposed amendments to 
the Internal Revenue Code. 

7. From the moment of his inaugural address to date, President Trump has 
publicly and repeatedly disparaged and defamed his predecessor as 
President, members of Congress, the Judiciary, Government officials, 
political opponents, members of the press, and other individuals in a crude, 
and insulting manner. In addition, he has called into question the legitimacy 
of the other equal branches of our government, so as to undermine seriously 
these institutions in the eyes of our people and the world. Thus he has made 
us fear that our nation is headed in the direction of becoming an authoritarian 
dictatorship. 

8. In June, 2016, Donald Trump’s agents, campaign chairman Paul 
Manafort, Trump’s son, Donald Trump, Jr., and his son-in-law, Jared 
Kushner, willfully, knowingly, and improperly, sought to obtain from Russian 
government sources, damaging information regarding Hillary Clinton for the 
purpose of aiding Donald Trump’s presidential campaign. On July 13, 2017 
President Trump defended the foregoing improper actions. 

9. Encouraging law enforcement officers to physically abuse arrested 
suspects in violation of existing police rules and regulations and the Due 
Process clause of the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States 
Constitution; and reversing the Obama administration's policies seeking, 
through litigation, to curtail certain police department misconduct such as the 
excessive use of force, as in the case of the Chicago Police Department. 

10. Imposing an immigration ban based upon religious discrimination in 
violation of the First Amendment's protections of freedom of religion. 

11. Imposing a ban upon transgender people from serving in the military in 
violation of the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment. 
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12. Encouraging violence and showing disdain for core American values by 
stating that Ku Klux Klan members, neo-Nazis, and their racist allied 
protesters in Charlottesville included "very nice people." 

13. Exhibiting disdain for the Constitution and the judicial process by 
pardoning former Phoenix Sheriff, Joe Arpaio, who had been held in 
contempt of court by a federal judge for acting in "flagrant disregard" of the 
court's order directing that Arpaio's department cease engaging in racial 
profiling. 

14. Callously and cruelly withdrawing the protections of President Obama's 
Deferred Action for Childhood Arrivals Executive Order from approximately 
800,000 "Dreamers," thereby subjecting them to family and job disruption 
and possible deportation. 

15. Recklessly and crudely urging the owners of National Football League 
franchises to discharge players for exercising their constitutional, statutory, 
and contractual rights to engage in silent non-violent protests against 
discrimination prior to games; 

16. Threatening to “totally destroy” North Korea and annihilate its entire 
population, thereby suggesting genocide in violation of the United Nations 
Charter and international law; 

17. Attacking Carmen Yulin Cruz, the Mayor of San Juan, Puerto Rico, for 
her pleas for additional federal assistance in response to its humanitarian 
crisis created by Hurricane Maria, threatening to withdraw federal assistance 
to Puerto Rico, and suggesting that Puerto Rico’s residents were not doing 
enough to help themselves;  
 
18. Ending Federal Affordable Care Act subsidies amounting to about $7 
billion in fiscal year 2017, and $10 billion in 2018, according to the 
Congressional Budget Office, so as to deprive low income citizens of health 
insurance. 

19. Seeking to interfere with due process of law, as stated by Senator Bob 
Corker, by “pressuring...the Justice Department and FBI to pursue cases 
against [President Trump’s] political adversaries, and calling for punishment 
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of alleged criminals before trials take place,” which in Senator Corker’s view 
“are totally inappropriate.” 

20. Publishing inflammatory videos prepared and distributed by an ultra-right 
wing British group, Britain First, on November 21, 2017, which alleged to 
show Muslims committing acts of violence, of which Senator Lindsey 
Graham (R. S.C.), said constituted “legitimizing religious bigotry,” and British 
Prime Minister Theresa May condemned for promoting racism and bigotry; 

21. Tweeting an attack upon the integrity of the Federal Bureau of 
Investigation (FBI), as being in “tatters,” on December 2, 2017, and 
lamenting that: “General [Michael] Flynn [Trump’s former National Security 
Advisor], lies to the FBI and his life is destroyed . . .,” after Flynn pled guilty 
in federal court to the felony of making “materially false, fictitious, and 
fraudulent statements and representations . . .” to the FBI concerning 
discussions he had with the Russian Ambassador to the United States, 
which impeded then pending FBI investigations; 

22. Endorsing and campaigning for a candidate for the United States Senate 
from Alabama, Roy Moore, who has praised the slavery era, proposed 
banning Muslims from Congress, was twice removed from the Alabama 
Supreme Court for defying federal court orders, and who has been credibly 
accused by several Alabama women of sexually assaulting them when they 
were teenagers and when he was in his thirties; 

23. Withdrawing some two million acres of land from two national 
monuments in Utah, Grande Staircase – Escalante and Bears Ears, both of 
which have magnificent landscapes and priceless Native American artifacts, 
and have been protected from mining and development. Such withdrawal 
already has become the subject of lawsuits brought by environmentalists and 
Native American groups, seeking to declare President Trump’s actions 
illegal; 

24. Issuing an anti-Native American racist slur against Senator Elizabeth 
Warren, at a White House ceremony honoring Navajo code talkers on 
November 27, 2017, which was deeply offensive to Senator Warren and 
Native American communities. 
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25. Declaring in a sexist manner that Senator Kirsten Gillibrand had come to 
his business office “begging” for political contributions and that she “would do 
anything for them.” 

26. Selecting multiple unfit and dangerous federal judicial nominees for 
lifetime appointments, including Brett Talley who has never tried a case in 
court and received an unqualified ranking by the non-partisan American Bar 
Association and Jeff Mateer who has previously described transgender youth 
as part of "Satan's plan”. 

27. After having acknowledged in November, 2017, that as President he was 
“not supposed to be involved with the Justice Department,” in connection 
with its investigations, he told the New York Times on December 28, 2017, 
that “I have absolute right to do what I want to do with the Justice 
Department.” 

28. Telling the press on December 15, 2017, that “I don’t want to talk about 
pardons for Michael Flynn yet. We’ll see what happens,”  which may be 
construed as a violation of 18 U.S.C. 1512 (b), which declares: 
“Whoever...corruptly persuades another person, or attempts to-influence..or 
prevent the testimony of any person, in an official proceeding...shall be fined 
under this title or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or both.” Thus, Trump 
may have been signaling to Flynn that how, and whether, he testified before 
a grand jury or otherwise in the current Mueller investigation would influence 
Trump regarding pardoning Flynn. 

29. Threatening North Korea by “tweeting” that he had “a Nuclear Button” 
that is “ much bigger and more powerful” than North Korea’s “and [his] 
Button works!”  

30. Demanding that an author and publisher cease publishing a book critical 
of him, and demanding a retraction and apology from them, thereby seeking 
to impose a prior restraint upon them, and “chilling” them in their exercise of 
their First Amendment rights. 

31.  Publicly insulted 25-year California Senator Diane Feinstein in a tweet 
on January 10, 2018, by calling her “sneaky” and declaring that she had 
made public the Glenn Simpson Congressional hearing transcript “in an 
underhanded and possibly illegal way, totally without authorization, [which] is 
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a disgrace,” and suggested that Senator Feinstein had done so because she 
faced a “tough Primary;” 

32.  Declared on January 10, 2018, that our libel laws are a “sham” and a 
“disgrace” and that he would take a “strong look” at changing them, when in 
fact the laws he referred to are subject to the First Amendment to the 
Constitution as well as well-settled Supreme Court doctrines and decisions 
such as New York Times v. Sullivan, which declare that with regard to 
proving a defamation case brought by a public figure, the publisher must 
have published the statement with malice, consisting of knowledge of the 
falsity of the statement or proceeding in reckless disregard of the truth or 
falsity thereof; 

33.  Declared in the crudest and most racist possible terms at a meeting on 
January 11, 2017, with members of Congress discussing immigration 
legislation, that Haiti and certain African countries were undesirable sources 
of immigrants and that he preferred immigrants to the United States to come 
from countries such as Norway, which have overwhelmingly white 
populations; 

34.  It has been reliably reported that in June 2017, President Trump ordered 
the firing of Special Counsel Mueller but did not implement his order because 
White House Counsel Donald McGahn told Trump that he would resign if 
Trump forced McGahn do so. This provides further evidence that Trump had 
the intent of obstructing the due administration of justice in connection with 
Special Counsel Mueller’s investigation of members of Trump’s 
administration by dismissing Mueller. Trump sought to cover up this report by 
describing it as “false-news.” 

35. Publicly charged on February 2, 2018, that “ the top leadership and 
investigators of the Justice Department and the FBI have politicized the 
sacred investigative process in favor of Democrats and against 
Republicans...” at a time when his former National Security Advisor Michael 
Flynn has pled guilty to lying to the FBI, and Trump and others in the White 
House are under investigation by Special Counsel Mueller for obstruction of 
justice  in connection with Trump’s firing of former FBI Director James 
Comey, and helping Russia interfere in the 2016 presidential election. 
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36. Declassifying material contained  in a memorandum prepared and 
released by Congressman Nunes attacking actions by the Justice 
Department and FBI in obtaining a judicial warrant to engage in surveillance 
of a former Trump campaign aide, Carter Page, thereby wrongfully using the 
power of the presidency to thwart an investigation of him and his presidential 
campaign. Trump’s action was described by Senator John McCain as 
undermining the rule of law and “helping Putin.” 

37. At an official White House visit and speech in Cincinnati, Ohio, on 
February 5, 2018, President Trump accused Democrats in Congress of 
being “un-American” and “treasonous” for having declined to applaud during 
his recent State of the Union address to Congress. 

38. Calling the claims that Russia interfered with the 2016 presidential 
election a “hoax” and “a made up story,” and failing to direct action and 
sanctions against further Russian election interference in the face of massive 
evidence reported upon by the American intelligence community and in 
special counsel Mueller’s lawsuit filed against the Russian perpetrators on 
February 16, 2018. 

39. Praising Communist China’s dictator, Xi Jinping, for having appointed 
himself “President for life,” and for being “a great gentleman,” and also 
proposing that “Maybe we’ll give that a shot someday!” at a political 
fundraiser at his Florida golf resort on March 3, 2018, where he received 
applause for his remarks. Trump also praised Xi for being “the most powerful 
president of China in 100 years.” 

40. At a political campaign rally on March 10, 2018, near Pittsburgh, Trump 
insulted and offended California Congresswoman Maxine Waters by 
describing her as a “low- I.Q. Individual,” and once again referred to 
Massachusetts Senator Elizabeth Warren in a racially derogatory and 
insensitive way, as “Pocahontas.” 

41. Spitefully conspired with Attorney General Sessions to discharge FBI 
Deputy Director Andrew McCabe two days prior to his birthday, which was 
the date he planned to retire and become eligible for his pension, all in 
violation of Session’s decision “to recuse [himself] from any existing or future 
investigations of any matters related in any way to the campaigns for 
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President of the United States,” since McCabe’s discharge related to his 
investigations of 2016 Presidential election matters. 

42. Despite the advice of his national security advisors not to congratulate 
Russian President Putin for his recent “election” victory, and having imposed 
sanctions against Russia on March 19, 2018, Trump nevertheless applauded 
Putin for having been elected as Russia’s President in a phone call with him 
the next day, which caused Senator John McCain to declare that “an 
American President does not lead the free world by congratulating dictators 
on winning sham elections.” 

43.Calling the enforcement of a subpoena and an investigation by the 
Justice Department, Special Counsel Mueller, and the FBI, seeking attorney-
client documents of President Trump’s attorney, Michael Cohen, on April 9, 
2018, a “witch hunt,” a violation of “everyone’s rights,” an “an attack upon our 
country,” and attorney-client privilege, notwithstanding that a federal 
magistrate authorized such subpoena and investigation based upon a 
showing by the Government of “probable cause” of the commission of crimes 
by Cohen, and/or others, related to the investigation of wrongdoing by 
Special Counsel Mueller. 

44. By declaring on May 23, 2018, that those NFL players who choose not to 
stand, and kneel instead, during the playing of the national anthem, “maybe 
shouldn’t be in the country,” President Trump showed his contempt and 
disrespect for the exercise of First Amendment rights by citizens, intended to 
protest racial injustices and other perceived wrongs in our political system. In 
addition, he was lending support to the NFL and its team owners who 
adopted a policy of disciplining players for exercising their Constitutional 
rights in the foregoing manner. 

45. By falsely claiming that an investigation by federal law enforcement into 
Russian interference in the conduct of the 2016 Presidential election 
constituted spying on his campaign, President Trump deliberately and 
knowingly distorted the facts to make it appear that he was the victim of 
misconduct by governmental agencies. In fact, former National Security 
Advisor James Clapper responded that Trump’s allegation was Orwellian in 
nature and a total fabrication, and that the investigation was undertaken 
solely to determine whether there was Russian interference in the election, 
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which Clapper described as being so massive as to have affected the 
outcome of the election in Trump’s favor. 

46. By declaring in a dictatorial manner on June 4, 2018, that “the 
appointment of Special Counsel [Mueller]  is totally UNCONSTITUTIONAL!” 
and that “I [Trump] have the absolute right to PARDON myself,” Trump 
demonstrated that he believes himself to be above the law, and accountable 
to no one,  in gross derogation  of our Constitutional system of government, 
the separation of powers and the rule of law. 

47. Falsely asserting in a May 26, 2018 tweet that under a “horrible law” 
which he said was “bad legislation passed by the Democrats” but in fact 
does not exist, the Federal Government is required to separate hundreds of 
children, including toddlers, from their parents at U.S. borders and 
incarcerate and hold them when they and their parents enter the United 
States seeking sanctuary or otherwise, and continuing to do so when the 
office of the United Nations High Commissioner for Human Rights has 
declared such treatment of children by the United States to constitute a 
violation of International Law and the rights of the children involved. 

48. President Trump proposed that migrants who seek asylum in this country 
or enter illegally simply should be expelled from this country summarily at the 
border rather than receiving the hearing that they are entitled to under 
applicable law, declaring that that they should immediately be sent home 
“without Judges or court hearings.” 

49. In a freewheeling campaign meeting in Montana early in July, 2018, 
Trump extolled his own campaign slogans and compared them favorably to 
former President H.W. Bush’s “Thousand Points of Light” program 
encouraging voluntarism, declaring “What the hell is that?” 

50. Shamefully and disgracefully providing “aid and comfort” to the Russian 
government, and its head of state, Vladimir Putin, by declaring publicly in 
Helsinki, Finland, in Putin and the world’s presence, that the Mueller 
investigation was a “disaster for our country,” and publicly rejecting the 
conclusion of the entire American intelligence community, the Mueller 
investigation, and Congress, that Putin, and the Russian government 
interfered by hacking the emails of the Clinton campaign and the Democratic 
Party for the purpose of supporting Trump’s campaign and defeating Clinton. 



-12- 
 

As stated by the Washington Post, by “trashing [our] own country’s justice 
system, Mr. Trump was openly colluding with the criminal leader of a hostile 
power.” And as Senator John McCain declared: “No prior president has ever 
abased himself more abjectly before a tyrant.” 

WHEREFORE, the undersigned respectfully request that President Donald 
J. Trump be censured for the acts, statements and conduct specified above. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



-13- 
 

DECONSTRUCTING DERSHOWITZ 
 

By Jules Bernstein 
 
 I am a long-time summer visitor to Martha’s Vineyard but I do not know Alan 

Dershowitz personally. I have never invited him or disinvited him to dinner, although I have 

seen him holding court on the porch at the Chilmark Store.  And as a lawyer, I am familiar 

with his remarkable career.  

 But I have read recently about his “j’accuse” against certain Vineyarders for making 

him the victim of McCarthyism. In addition, he has been defending publicly what he 

considers to be the constitutional rights and civil liberties of President Trump; claiming that 

the recent revocation of the bond and jailing of Trump’s former campaign manager, Paul 

Manafort, is illegal; and that the FBI raid on the home, office and hotel room of Trump’s 

former lawyer, Michael Cohen, was unconstitutional. All of these claims require reasoned 

analysis and response from a fellow Vineyarder, Brooklynite, and lawyer, so here goes. 

McCARTHYISM ON MARTHA’S VINEYARD 

 Dershowitz has complained that “I never thought I would see McCarthyism come to 

Martha’s Vineyard, but I have,” referring to the social snubbing he says he has received there 

because of his defense of Donald Trump. 

 I have examined many definitions and examples of McCarthyism, but was unable to 

find anything remotely close to the conduct that Dershowitz accuses his former friends of 

engaging in being described that way.  As Dershowitz well knows, McCarthyism was the 

process whereby Senator Joseph McCarthy and others, in the nineteen-fifties, made public 

accusations of individuals’ communist membership or sympathies, as well as treasonous 
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activities, which resulted in the discharge or blacklisting from employment, or prosecution 

and jailing, of vast numbers of Americans. As put by a recent letter writer to the New York 

Times (July 5, 2018): “No one is making false accusations against [Dershowitz] or accusing 

him without evidence of treachery. No one is threatening to imprison him if he doesn’t 

denounce his friends. No one is denying him a living or threatening to harm him.”   

 We are living through one of the darkest moments in our nation’s history. For 

Dershowitz to accuse people on the Vineyard of McCarthyism is pure demagoguery and 

group defamation. What Dershowitz is complaining about is the fact that many people find his 

actions and statements in support of the most reprehensible, dishonest, and reactionary 

President in our history to be beyond the pale of reasoned discourse. One of our remaining 

freedoms simply is to be able to end friendships, which may be painful for all. But accusing 

former friends of McCarthyism because they wish to unfriend Dershowitz is simply an 

additional reason for others to do so. Thus it is a self-inflicted wound. 

 Even further, it is bizarre for Dershowitz to say (which he has) that because he is being 

ostracized by his former friends for aiding Trump, it is they who thereby are aiding Trump. 

Sadly, as in too much else, his logic is Trumpian, and it unfairly disparages a community 

whose values are deeply thoughtful and caring. 

 Being shunned by old friends is painful. The numerous recent incidents of shaming 

involving Trump administration figures at restaurants and elsewhere demonstrate how deep 

the divide in our country has become because of the extremely divisive behavior of President 

Trump.  The litany of Trump’s lies, abuses, and misdeeds need no repetition here. But 

hopefully a time will come when we can all look back on this nightmarish period honestly, 
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and try to come together for the greater good of our country, its people and the world. I look 

forward to that time, but I fear it may not be arriving any time soon if Donald Trump and Alan 

Dershowitz continue their destructive courses. 

DERSHOWITZ ON IMPEACHMENT 

 Dershowitz claims that President Trump may not be charged with a crime while in 

office, that the sole basis for his impeachment by the House of Representatives would be the 

commission of a crime, and that to be removed from office, he must be convicted of such 

crime by a 2/3 vote of the Senate after a trial, and that a president’s motives may not be 

considered in judging his actions, such as granting pardons or discharging employees. In his 

latest book, out this month, Dershowitz tries to make “The Case Against the Impeachment of 

Donald Trump.” And he repeatedly has asserted: “. . . you can’t remove or impeach a 

president for malpractice in office.”  

 Similarly, as to whether Trump colluded with the Russians to sway the 2016 election, 

in a media interview in New Zealand in March of this year, Dershowitz said there was no 

question that Russia meddled in the election, and he further acknowledged that he did not 

know whether Trump did collude, but said that if he did, “it would be terrible, but not a 

crime,” and therefore would not be an impeachable offense. 

 In fact, however, the claim that the President must be guilty of a crime to be 

impeached, is without foundation. . The Constitution declares that “The President, Vice 

President and all Civil Officers of the United States shall be removed from Office on 

Impeachment for and Conviction of Treason, Bribery, or other high Crimes and 

Misdemeanors.” Thus, in a June, 2018 article in the conservative Federalist Society Review, 
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(available online), Professor Robert C. Natelson, a leading constitutional scholar, concluded 

on the basis of extensive historical research regarding the term “high . . . Misdemeanors,” as 

follows: 

 
We best capture the meaning of the phrase “high...Misdemeanors” when we 
think of it as referring to breaches of fiduciary duty. High misdemeanors are not 
limited to commissions of crimes, but they do not include mere political 
differences. While violations of the criminal law provide grounds for 
impeachment, High misdemeanors encompass breaches of the duties of loyalty, 
good faith and care, and of the obligations to account and to follow instructions 
(including the law and Constitution) when administering one’s office. 

 

 Many other constitutional law experts, including Professors Lawrence Tribe and Cass 

Sunstein, both of the Harvard Law School, and American University Professor Allan J. 

Lichtman, in his 2017 book, “The Case for Impeachment” (of Donald Trump), agree that 

egregiously wrongful acts which are not criminal in nature may be the basis for impeachment. 

As put by Alexander Hamilton in the Federalist, in 1788: Impeachment will “proceed from the 

misconduct of public men, or, in other words, of the abuse or violation of some public trust,” 

and “they relate chiefly to injuries done immediately to the society itself.”  Similarly, at the 

Constitutional Convention, James Madison said that the impeachment provision was 

necessary because: 

 
It [was] indispensable that some provision should be made for defending the 
Community agnst [sic] the incapacity, negligence or perfidy of the chief 
Magistrate....He might pervert his administration into a scheme of peculation or 
oppression. He might betray his trust to foreign powers. 
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 Finally, Federal appeals court Judge Brett M. Kavanaugh, who has been nominated by 

President Trump to the Supreme Court, wrote in a 2009 law review article that there is always 

a way to remove a “bad-behaving or law-breaking President. . . If the President does 

something dastardly, the impeachment process is available.” (Emphasis added.)   

 Thus it is clear that Dershowitz’s view is mistaken that criminal behavior is a 

requirement for impeachment. 

 Similarly, Dershowitz asserted recently that “you cannot question a president’s motives 

when he acts,” in connection with proving that he has committed a crime. Thus Dershowitz 

argues that a president may fire an employee, such as former FBI head, James Comey, or 

pardon someone, and his motives may not be examined, in order to prove, for example, that 

he has engaged in obstruction of justice. 

 The flaw in Dershowitz’s reasoning, as pointed out recently by Professor Lawrence 

Tribe, is that the Constitution expressly makes the crimes of treason and bribery specific 

grounds for impeachment, both of which require proof of motive.   

 For example, imagine a president who grants a pardon or appoints a federal judge in 

exchange for a cash payment or other consideration. 

 Last summer, with friends, I began collecting an inventory of acts by President Trump, 

some of which might ultimately be determined to warrant impeachment, but at a minimum 

constitute breaches of trust and fiduciary obligations, as well as egregious behavior, which 

separately or collectively warrant censure by both the House and Senate. Among many others, 

President Andrew Jackson and Senator Joseph McCarthy were censured by the Senate on 

grounds far less egregious than those committed by Donald Trump while in office. Our 
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grounds for censure now number almost 50 and are collected at censuredonaldtrump.com. 

They have garnered over 60,000 signatures and will be delivered to all Senate and House 

members. They include his contempt, abhorrence and lack of respect for the rule of law; his 

disparagement and ridicule of federal judges, members of Congress and his political 

opponents; his continuous lying to the public and press; his continuing to receive profits and 

benefits from foreign governments in violation of the Constitution’s Emoluments Clause; his 

unending attacks on the press as “the enemy of the people;” his efforts to undermine the 

Justice Department and its Mueller Investigation, and his racist and sexist remarks and 

actions, to mention just a few.  

THE JAILING OF MANAFORT 

 Recently, Paul Manafort, Trump’s former campaign manager, after having been 

indicted in the District of Columbia for multiple federal crimes, and been released on a $10 

million bond, had his bond revoked by a judge based upon evidence that while he was 

awaiting trial he sought to corruptly influence two potential witnesses in his case. Special 

counsel Mueller obtained an additional indictment against Manafort for engaging in this 

activity, and the judge ordered his incarceration based upon the evidence presented to her by 

Mueller. Manafort presently is in federal prison in Virginia pending trial in another case. 

 Alan Dershowitz attacked the jailing of Manafort as being “very, very unfair,” an 

“outrage,” and “obnoxious to our Constitution.”  Dershowitz argues that Manafort is “no more 

guilty of contacting witnesses or attempting to obstruct justice than any of us.” He declared 

that “we should not be denying bail to poor people, rich people, or anyone in between, before 

they’ve been convicted of any crime. These are presumed innocent people.” 

http://censuredonaldtrump.com/
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 Dershowitz is correct that the bail system is unfair, but the unfairness favors the rich 

like Manafort, who was required to, and was able to post a $10 million dollar bond. In fact, 

more than half the hundreds of thousands of people who are in jail at any given time are there 

awaiting trial, and the reason they are there is mostly because unlike Manafort, they cannot 

afford bail. Indeed Manafort was granted bail, but it was rescinded because of evidence that 

he had committed another related crime while free, which is one of several grounds for 

legitimately cancelling bail. Indeed, upon revoking Manafort’s bond, Judge Amy Berman 

Jackson declared: “I cannot turn a blind eye” to the way Manafort betrayed “the [court’s] 

trust.” She added that there is “no evidence of even a threat of harm to any person,” but “the 

harm from the new charges” (of attempted subornation of perjury), is “harm to the 

administration of justice” and “to the integrity of the system.” 

An outrage? I think not! 

THE MICHAEL COHEN SEARCH WARRANT 

 As to the FBI raid on the office, home and hotel room of then Trump lawyer Michael 

Cohen on April 9 of this year, Dershowitz maintained that the raid violated Trump’s Attorney-

client privilege and the 4th and 6th Amendments to the Constitution which protect individuals 

from illegal searches and seizures and their right to counsel. For a search to be lawful there 

must be a warrant issued by a court based upon reasonable cause presented under oath to a 

judge describing the material sought. In the case of the FBI raid seeking Cohen’s records, 

such a warrant issued. Indeed, it was signed off on by Deputy Attorney General Rod 

Rosenstein. Thereafter, a federal magistrate issued the search warrant. 
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 As to the seized documents, a retired federal judge, who is serving as a special master, 

has concluded thus far that of the hundreds of thousands of Cohen’s documents seized by the 

FBI, less than one-tenth of 1% are subject to the attorney-client privilege. This is partly 

because the scope of the attorney-client privilege generally is quite narrow and is limited to 

the seeking and giving of legal advice.  But Cohen’s records included documents related to his 

vast dealings in real estate, taxicabs and beyond. 

 When NPR’s Scott Simon asked Dershowitz whether the FBI seeking material relating 

to the “Access Hollywood” tape and the Karen McDougall matter were “fair game,” 

Dershowitz replied: 

No, no, no. Not good enough to get a search warrant of a lawyer’s office. To get 
a search warrant of a lawyer’s office, you should be looking for Mafia-type drug 
connections, major corporate crimes. To use that nuclear weapon, and it’s used 
very, very rarely- a search of a lawyer’s office-on what seems like rather 
technical criminal charges sounds like a lack of proportion. 

 

 In support of his position, Dershowitz has paraded the horrible of interference with the 

doctor-patient relationship through government searches of doctors’ offices. But in fact such 

searches are common in the face of vast Medicare and Medicaid fraud by doctors which cost 

the government and taxpayers huge amounts annually. Indeed criminal convictions of doctors 

in such cases are common. 

 Dershowitz claims to be the guardian of the civil liberties of all, but he told NPR at the 

time of the raid on Cohen’s offices that he was “not worried about the rights of the allegedly 

crooked lawyer or doctor or priest.” Apparently he was suggesting that Cohen did not “fill 
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that bill,” and Cohen was entitled to greater protection and deference. But here’s what 

attorney Cohen told ABC News in 2011: 

 
If somebody does something Mr. Trump doesn’t like, I do every in my power to 
resolve it to Mr. Trump’s benefit. If you do something wrong, I’m going to come 
at you, grab you by the neck and I’m not going to let you go until I’m finished. 
 

 Surely, he sounds much more like a “fixer” and “enforcer” than a lawyer!  Indeed, not 

even, Tom Hagen, the consigliere of the Corleone family, was ever heard to speak this way.   

 Finally, that Cohen used his law office as the locale for his extensive business dealings 

and other non-privileged conduct and documents, cannot serve to shield him from a lawful 

search regarding such matters. 

CONCLUSION 

 As to the foregoing issues and others, the problem with Professor Dershowitz is that he 

simultaneously has worn two inconsistent hats throughout his career. These are the scholarly 

hat of a professor of law and the adversarial hat of a criminal defense lawyer. And he has 

sought to parley his respected academic self to advance his adversarial self as a means of 

supporting his cases and causes. There is no question that he is a voluntary advocate for 

President Trump, and not an academician helping the public understand the law. Law 

professors do teach law students to be advocates, but as teachers they must have a 

commitment to the truth as they see it. In contrast, advocates are expected to put the strongest 

case forward for their clients, and leave its weaknesses to opposing counsel. But here 

Professor Dershowitz is advocating for Trump even though he is not his lawyer, and is not 

merely explaining some “neutral” legal principles. However, he expects his representations to 
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be accepted as correct based upon his academic credentials. I am not suggesting that a law 

professor should never be an advocate, but rather, that the adversarial habits of Professor 

Dershowitz prevent him from honestly bringing to bear in these critical matters his academic 

angle of vision which would require him to tell the public the full story, or at least indicate 

that the law may be unsettled.   

 At a time when most liberals and even some conservatives are deeply worried about the 

fact that Trump is the greatest presidential threat to civil and human rights and liberties in our 

history, regrettably Alan Dershowitz has become a staunch defender of his unlimited and 

unbridled power. 

 

#   #   # 
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